
 
 
 
 
August 30, 2013 
 
Via Electronic Mail 
 
Ms. Kimberly Bose, Secretary 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
888 First Street, N.E. 
Washington, DC 20426 
 
Re: Northfield Mountain Pumped Storage Project, FERC Project No. 2485 
 Turners Falls Hydroelectric Project, FERC Project No. 1889  

Impact on Relicensing Studies and Schedule due to Reported Closing of the Vermont 
Yankee Nuclear Project, Vernon, VT, Connecticut River 

 
Dear Ms. Bose: 
 
FirstLight Hydro Generating Company (FirstLight), a subsidiary of GDF SUEZ Energy North 
America, is the Licensee of the Turners Falls Hydroelectric Project (FERC No. 1889) and the 
Northfield Mountain Pumped Storage Project (FERC No. 2485).  Both facilities are located on 
the Connecticut River in Massachusetts, approximately 20 miles downstream of the Vernon 
Hydroelectric Project (FERC No. 1904) and Dam in Vermont (see Figure 1), operated by 
TransCanada Hydro Northeast Inc. (TransCanada).     
 
FirstLight is currently in the process of relicensing its two facilities with the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC or Commission) using the Integrated Licensing Process (ILP).  
Relative to the ILP schedule, comments on FirstLight’s Revised Study Plan (RSP) were due to 
FERC by August 29, 2013.  FERC is slated to issue its Study Plan Determination Letter (SPDL) 
by September 13, 2013.  The ILP schedule calls for two field seasons of studies, in 2014 and 
2015, with the Final License Application due by April 29, 2016.     
 
FirstLight has learned through various media outlets, including ISO-New England (see 
Attachment 1) that the Vermont Yankee Nuclear Project (VY) is planning to close by the end of 
2014.  VY, located on the bank of the Vernon Dam impoundment (see Figure 1), uses the 
Connecticut River as cooling water, which impacts the temperature regime in the Connecticut 
River below Vernon Dam.  The closure of VY at the end of 2014 will change the existing 
environmental conditions in the Connecticut River and thus affect the baseline conditions for 
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purposes of FERC’s National Environmental Policy Act analysis for relicensing the Turners 
Falls Hydroelectric Project and Northfield Mountain Pumped Storage Project. 
 
Although there is a great deal of variability year to year with regard to the timing and magnitude 
of river flow, water temperature, air temperature, and other factors, FirstLight nonetheless 
believes that the VY closure and change in baseline conditions could impact the implementation 
or results of the some of the studies proposed in the RSP.  For example, in its RSP, FirstLight 
proposed to conduct Study 3.2.1, the Water Quality Monitoring Study, in 2014.  However, upon 
learning of the reported VY shutdown, FirstLight would now propose to delay this study until 
2015 to account for the “new” environmental baseline.  FirstLight needs additional time, 
however, to determine if other studies proposed in the RSP could be impacted.  Specifically, 
FirstLight would like to consult with the operator of VY to more fully understand the timing and 
effects of the closure.  For example, although generation will reportedly cease in late 2014, it is 
unclear if water withdrawals will continue for a period thereafter for cooling purposes.  
FirstLight also needs to consult with TransCanada, with whom FirstLight had agreed to 
coordinate efforts on a number of relicensing studies.  Accordingly, FirstLight requests 30 days 
from the date of this letter to re-submit any study plans that may need to be modified in light of 
the new environmental baseline.  This request aligns with the similar request filed by 
TransCanada on August 28. 
 
FirstLight understands that this request may impact the timing of Commission Staff’s SPDL, 
which is expected to be issued on September 13, 2013.  However, FirstLight believes that the 
unexpected closure of VY is a sufficiently unusual circumstance to warrant modification of the 
ILP schedule.         
 
If you have any questions regarding this letter, please feel free to call me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
John Howard 
 
Enclosed: Figure 1 and Attachment A 
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Figure 1: Location Map 
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Attachment A 
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